
Page 1 of 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2023 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of September 13, 2023 

Public Comments 

New Business 

2. College Hill Neighborhood Design Review – 2121 Walnut St. (DR23-003) 
Petitioner: Witham Management LLC, Owner, All Star Construction, Contractor 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Approval 
P&Z Action: Discuss and make a recommendation to City Council 

3. Hwy-1 Commercial Site Plan– 703 Brandilynn Blvd. (SP23-012) 
Petitioner: AMCPAC LLC, Owner; Alex Bower, Robinson Engineering Company, Engineer  
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Approval 
P&Z Action: Discuss and make a recommendation to City Council 

Old Business 

       None 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* October 25 and November 8 - Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* October 16 and November 6 - City Council Meetings 

1



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

September 13, 2023 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on September 13, 2023 at 
5:30 p.m. at City Hall. The following Commission members were present: Alberhasky, Crisman,  
Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker. Grybovych was absent. Karen Howard, 
Planning & Community Services Manager, Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II, Jaydevsinh Atodaria, 
Planner I, and Chris Sevy, Planner I were also present.  
 
1.) Chair Lynch noted the Minutes from the August 23, 2023 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Lynch made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Mr. Stalnaker seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was a College Hill Neighborhood Design Review for artwork at 

Pettersen Plaza. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background 
information. He explained that the applicant is requesting permission to install three aluminum 
composite panels to be secured to aluminum standoffs on the north facing wall of 2016 
College Street (Pettersen Plaza). It would be used to display artwork created by UNI students 
that will be chosen by an annual competition hosted by the UNI Art Department and the UNI 
Public Art Incubator. He showed an example of what could be displayed for illustration 
purposes. He noted that the proposed panels and artwork are likely be welcome additions to 
the neighborhood character. Staff recommends approval of installing the panels.  

 
 Mr. Hartley stated that he feels it will be a nice addition. Ms. Moser agreed. 
 
 Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Moser seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, 
Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a PC-2 Site Plan for 702 LeClair 

Street. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He 
explained that the proposal is for a site plan for a new building at 702 LeClair Street in the PC-
2 District. The property was rezoned in August to provide more flexibility for continuation of the 
existing business on the site and allow limited expansion. He discussed the proposal, noting 
that the application will be adding landscaping and a stormwater detention basis on-site. The 
proposed building would be built as per the Development Agreement. The applicant is 
requesting to remove a proposed park bench and small trail loop on the south side of the 
development. He discussed setback and utility easement information, as well as required 
landscaping and proposed building design. Staff recommends approval. 

 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, 
Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 
4.) The Commission then considered a request regarding an MU District Master Plan Amendment 

for Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes, Phase I. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria 
provided background information. He explained that the property is at the southeast corner of 
East Greenhill Road and Oster Parkway and explained the process of plat and site plan 

2

Item 1.



 2 

approvals. He displayed a contrast of what was originally proposed to what has changed since 
then and explained the changes. The application is requesting the amendment of the master 
plan to build out the remaining land and to update the master plan to match what has been 
built to date. They are also requesting approval of three possible scenarios for future 
development with a mix of single-family units, duplex units and a set of detached garage 
buildings. He discussed the three scenarios and the locations of each proposal and provided 
an analysis of the proposal, noting that staff finds all three scenarios to be consistent with the 
intent and requirements of the zoning district. Staff recommends approval of the Master Plan 
Amendment. 

 
 Mr. Hartley clarified that one of the three scenarios must be chosen. 
 
 Mr. Leeper asked if there were concerns with the inconsistencies in the plan. Ms. Howard 

stated that staff analyzed what has been built along with what is proposed, since it is not 
known why past deviations from the plan were approved without the required review by P&Z 
and Council.  

 
 Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Leeper seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, 
Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 
5.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was an easement vacation at West Viking 

Road Industrial Park Phase V, Lots 17 & 18. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Sevy 
provided background information. He explained that there is a drainage easement across the 
eastern edge of Lots 17 & 18 at the northeast block of Technology Parkway and Innovation 
Drive and noted that the property is owned by the City. A company would like to locate a 
distribution center in the Industrial Park that requires the combining of all lots within that 
section of the area. He explained that the original intent of the easement was to provide 
drainage access to all east and west adjacent properties allowing water to drain southward 
into the basin located on the south side of Technology Parkway. As the lots are to be 
combined the drainage easement is no longer necessary. The developer will be responsible 
for demonstrating on their site plan how stormwater will be managed and directed to the storm 
sewer according to City requirements at the time of site plan review. Mr. Sevy provided 
renderings that clarify what is being vacated. Staff recommends approval of the vacation. 

 
 Ms. Moser made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, 
Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 
6.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a Zoning Code text amendment for 

on-street parking as shared parking. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that the Commission has been asked to 
consider eliminating the zoning code provision that allows on-street parking that directly abuts 
a property to count toward the shared parking requirement for any new development on the 
property. More specifically, it is requested to delete City Code Section 26-196E, Special 
Parking Standards. She provided brief background again regarding the current code, 
explaining that the ordinance provides flexibility on how the shared parking requirement is 
satisfied. She noted that the flexibility is intended to help reduce the burden/cost of making this 
contribution to the supply of publicly available parking.  

 
 Staff recommends that the Commission hold a public hearing, discuss and make a 

recommendation to the City Council regarding their petition to delete the code. 
 

3

Item 1.



 3 

 Mr. Leeper asked what the options were. Ms. Howard stated that they can either approve or 
deny the deletion of the section of the code.  

 
 Mr. Hartley stated that the Commission discussed this a great deal during the process and 

feels that they made a reasoned decision at that time and that they are now being asked to 
change it, when they have already calculated and made a decision. Mr. Leeper agreed and 
stated that the provisions are meant to encourage density and in order to promote growth 
downtown, a different approach to parking is needed. Mr. Larson agreed with those 
sentiments. 

 
 Ms. Moser made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Hartley seconded the motion. The motion 

was denied unanimously with 8 nays (Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, 
Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 ayes. 

 
7.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was an RP Master Plan Amendment for 

Autumn Ridge Development. Ms. Alberhasky and Mr. Larson recused themselves from the 
discussion and left the meeting. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided 
background information. He gave a brief recap of what has been discussed at previous 
meetings regarding the proposal, including the specifics about the park space, stormwater 
management and increasing width of single-family units, the things that were recommended by 
both staff and Planning and Zoning Commission members. Mr. Atodaria also explained the 
updated master plan proposal, provided comparison of type of units proposed with other low 
density residential zone, discussed the new park location and highlighted easements and 
setbacks proposed for the units.   

 
 Mr. Tolan spoke about the stormwater management for the development and Mr. Atodaria 

stated that staff recommends approval of the Master Plan Amendment subject to compliance 
with conditions noted in the staff report and any comments or direction specified by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.  

 
 Mr. Leeper asked how many units were planned originally. Mr. Atodaria stated that there were 

originally 58 units, and the current has 86 units.  
 
 Adam Daters, CGA Engineers, 5106 Nordic Drive, spoke about the functioning of the 

stormwater detention and provided renderings to demonstrate where and how it works. He 
explained different watershed analysis scenarios that have been considered and the results of 
each.  

 
 Dennis Happel, BNKD, noted that he has had a great deal of review and confirmation 

regarding detention information and their numbers have come out as correct. He mentioned 
the maintenance concerns and stated that it has been out of sight, out of mind, but that no one 
has contacted them with issues. He stated that they have come to a decision with the City that 
issues will be addressed during grading of the site for construction and thereafter there will be 
an established and regular mowing plan for the stormwater facility. With regard to capacity of 
the facility, he said that they far exceed what is required for the area.  

 
 Ms. Moser asked about the status of the area that Maria Perez, Stormwater Specialist found 

when she came out to visit the site. Mr. Happel stated that any mowing debris will be collected 
at the time. Anything that was previously done is intertwined with new growth will be 
addressed during the maintenance process and reshaping of the detention facility.  

 
 John Englin, 4327 Wynnewood Drive, spoke about the letter that was received regarding this 

meeting and noted that he emailed the Commission members his concerns. He discussed the 
previously presented 90 dwelling units and concerns by the Commission with the density. At 

4

Item 1.



 4 

this time the units have only been decreased by four units and he feels that the concerns 
about density have been disregarded by the City and BNKD. He discussed concerns regarding 
this proposal.  

 
 Lyle Simmons, 207 Corduroy Drive, echoed Mr. Englin’s sentiments.  
 
 Genevieve VanDorn, 4124 Thresher Court, Unit 304, thanked staff for their hard work. She 

noted her concerns with the number of units being built. She explained that she had been 
originally told that there would be far less and that this increase would make for greater traffic 
issues. She also commented on the pricing for these units and how they are not what would 
be considered to be affordable. She also brought forward concerns about the location of the 
playground and its maintenance.  

 
 Cindy Luchtenberg, 4322 West 1st Street, spoke to concerns with density and congestion and 

how it will affect access for emergency vehicles. She also noted concerns with how close the 
houses would be, particularly in case of fire, and the potential for it to spread to the next 
house. 

 
 Ann Spurr, 4211 Berryhill Drive, took issue with a statement made by the developer regarding 

stormwater maintenance and how it’s been out of sight, out of mind. She stated that the HOA 
has sent dues to him each year, which should be a reminder. She also noted that the 
calculations from Mr. Dater causes her to question why there is water in their back yards when 
they are being told it will be in the detention basins. If it is already encroaching now, what will 
happen with more housing? She also questioned the proposal of bi-attached homes, noting 
that a change of a site plan was recently approved in another part of town to remove bi-
attached dwellings because they are not selling.  

 
 Mr. Happel spoke to the comment regarding the association dues, explaining that the whole 

detention is owned by the Autumn Ridge Stormwater Association. The dues are deposited in 
an account and are available at any time.  

 
 Mr. Daters stated that they can only deal with the data that is in front of them and the survey 

information and analysis indicates that the stormwater facility has adequate capacity for all 
areas.  He said more specific information would be needed from individual property owners 
about any encroachment into their yards so they could investigate.   

 
 Jim Hancock, 821 Lakeshore Drive, stated concerns with a lack of adjustment for the 

additional density added with regard to the detention area. He asked about additional sizing 
has been placed in the spillway to add for the 48% density being added to the project. He feels 
that there hasn’t been adequate attention given to what is actually happening versus what is 
being calculated. He also asked about the lack of additional rip rap that he has seen go into 
other projects but has not been factored in for this one. 

 
 Mr. Tolan explained that rip rap throughout an entire stream channel is not an effective use or 

measure. They use rip rap in energy dissipation and areas where additional armoring is 
needed, but typically for best stream corridor practices for aquatic life, etc., a grass system 
with plantings with strong root systems that hold the banks in is best.  

 
 Mr. Daters explained that they did analyze the increased runoff from a higher density and he 

was trying to show that the capacity from the model they performed appears to be sufficient. If 
there are discrepancies in what people are seeing versus what the model shows, they are 
more than happy to work with staff and any other third party engineers that would have 
comments. He also noted that this isn’t the final stormwater analysis that would be done. 
When the final plat is submitted a more detailed final report is submitted and reviewed by staff. 

5

Item 1.



 5 

 
 Tim Caswell, 4119 Shocker Road, stated concerns with and questioned who has the liability 

for the stormwater runoff issues.  
 
 Jeff Ries, 4227 Paddington, agreed with the statements made by other neighbors. He stated 

that he met with Rhonda Happel when first moving to the neighborhood and was promised 
something very different than what is currently being proposed. He noted issues with 
stormwater as well. 

 
 Ms. Crisman asked for more clarification regarding the park. Mr. Atodaria explained that the 

proposed park space is 2.1 acres and will be a City park. The Park Commission will be 
discussing this proposal request tomorrow at their regular scheduled meeting. Ms. Howard 
added that if parkland is proposed by developer in a subdivision, and is to be dedicated as a 
city park, the land needs to be prepared to City standards before it is accepted by the City. 
Once it is City parkland, further improvements such as playground and other park amenities 
can be proposed and approved by City Council as part of the capital improvements plan.  

 
 Mr. Leeper noted that he struggles with the project as he feels that the developer has done an 

adequate job with the numbers and requirements, but noted concerns with the expectations 
that the neighbors were given compared to what is now being proposed. Ms. Moser agreed 
with that struggle. Mr. Hartley also noted concerns with the extreme change in density.  

 
Ms. Lynch stated that while she loves the public process and truly appreciates everyone 
showing up to speak their thoughts and concerns, but she also feels that the numbers still fit 
into the parameters of low density. With the need for housing the community she is struggling 
with how she feels for the neighbors versus the facts presented.  
 
Ms. Crisman stated similar concerns, noting that as a Commission they don’t do a lot of actual 
planning. They mostly vote. While this project does meet the requirements, that doesn’t take 
into account complaints raised by the citizens. She knows there is an issue with housing, but 
doesn’t feel the solution is more $400,000 homes. She would like to see a revision that takes 
into consideration the comments made to make an impact on the community.  
 

 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The motion 
was denied with 6 nays (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 2 
abstentions (Alberhasky and Larson). 

 
8.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Crisman made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Hartley 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, 
Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Assistant 
 

6

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, AICP, City Planner I 

 DATE: October 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review for a new porch and siding. 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District design review 
application for a new porch and siding at 2121 Walnut (#DR23-003) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Witham Management LLC, property owner; All Star Construction, contractor. 

LOCATION: 2121 Walnut Street 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Due to structural issues identified by the 
City’s building department during rental 
inspections, updates to the porch at 2121 
Walnut are required. The applicant 
proposes to remove the current porch and 
the sleeper porch above it which fronts 
Walnut Street. In its place, the applicant 
would like to reconstruct a new porch 
essentially to the same dimensions as the 
existing porch, but without the upper floor 
“sleeping porch” above. While historically 
some houses had an upper story sleeping 
porch, indications are that this was not 
original to this house. This project will 
include new vinyl siding around the entire 
house, new vinyl windows on the upper 
story, and a porch constructed primarily of composite materials that require minimal 
maintenance and are rated to last 20+ years. The property is located in the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District and a review by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council is required for any “substantial improvement” proposed within the district. 
These changes and improvements meet the definition of “substantial improvement” as outlined 
by the Overlay District. 
 

7

Item 2.



BACKGROUND 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District was established for the preservation of 
neighborhood character and the stabilization of its neighborhoods after a long history of 
changes and updates to properties that typically increased occupancies and detracted from the 
original intent of those properties and neighborhoods. This trend and the establishment of the 
Overlay called for more scrutiny when reviewing changes that may affect the character of the 
neighborhood. See the location map above for reference. The highlighted property in the yellow 
boundary is the subject property. 
 
The subject property is located within the R-3, 
Multiple Residence Zoning district (Section 26-
166) and the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
Zoning District (Section 26-181). The standard in 
the Overlay requires that the following be 
considered in the design review of a substantial 
improvement: architectural compatibility; 
neighborhood character; building materials; 
façade details; parking; open space/landscaping 
requirements; and other provisions as applicable 
in the code.  
 

The current façade is pictured on the right and the 
proposed design is below it (also see attached).  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Architectural Compatibility: 
Eliminating the sleeping porch is a 
significant change but it also appears to 
be something that was added after 
original construction of the house in 1893. 
The contractor has indicated that the two 
proposed windows on the upper story are 
being positioned where original windows 
were located before the second story 
porch was added on. The windows and 
door on the ground story will remain as 
existing. 
 
The applicant proposes a new porch that 
extends the full width of the front of the 
house, similar to the existing and be 6 
feet in depth, which maintains the porch 
as a usable exterior space for the 
residents. It will have decorative 
aluminum porch posts as per the 
attached specifications. It will have 10” 
fascia boards below the porch roof and 
along the bottom of the porch. After 

8

Item 2.



discussion about ease of maintenance, the applicant has decided to install lattice skirting below 
the porch as per the attached specifications instead of the vertical decking boards shown in the 
image to the right.  The lattice will be more in keeping with a traditional porch design of this era. 
Since the porch will be 30 inches above grade a railing and porch balustrade is required for 
safety. The specifications of the balustrade are attached and appear similar to other porches of 
the era. The design has finishings that differentiate the porch from a deck which is important in 
the College Hill Overlay. Staff has no concerns with the architectural compatibility of the design. 
The applicant proposes a hipped roof for the porch, which is different than the original shed roof. 
Staff finds that this is an acceptable design deviation as hipped porch roofs are also common. A 
shed roof would also be acceptable as an alternative.  
 
Neighborhood Character: 
Since the new porch will be in 
keeping with the original design of the 
house and with other similar houses 
in the neighborhood, it will not 
adversely affect the neighborhood 
character. Another positive change to 
the design will be to re-orient the front 
stoop to the center of the porch rather 
than accessing it from the side. This 
will restore a more symmetrical 
design in keeping with the original 
design of the house. The stairs on the 
side will be removed. This project 
includes a new concrete walkway 
leading to the front stairs and entry 
from the public sidewalk on Walnut 
street. This is shown in the graphic to 
the right.  
 
Building Materials and Façade Details: 
The roofing materials on the porch will match the roof of the house. The porch fascia materials 
will utilize either a white composite or a white aluminum covering. The white columns will also 
be aluminum with an ornamental styling and have the load bearing capacity necessary to hold 
up the porch roof. The flooring will utilize a composite Trex decking. The fascia and skirting of 
the porch floor will also utilize a white composite Trex board and lattice which presents well to 
the street. The specs and details of all materials are attached. 
 
The proposed siding on the house is a horizontal vinyl siding similar to the existing siding but will 
be a grayish slate color instead of white. 
 
Handrails and railings are required by the Building Department since the floor of the porch sits, 
in part, 30 inches above grade. The product intended for that is also attached. 
 
Staff has no concerns regarding the proposed materials. 
 
Parking, Open Space, and Landscaping 
These criteria are not applicable to the scope of this project. 
 

9

Item 2.



 
Notification of this case was sent to adjacent property owners within 200 feet on October 4th, 
2023.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department has reviewed the proposed design review application 
for new porch, windows, and siding at 2121 Walnut Street and recommends approval. 
 
Attachments: 
Proposed Elevations 
Proposed Materials 
Letter of Intent 
 
 
 
 

10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

1 | P a g e  
 

13

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

2 | P a g e  
 

14

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

3 | P a g e  
 

15

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

4 | P a g e  
 

16

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

5 | P a g e  
 

17

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

6 | P a g e  
 

18

Item 2.



2121 Walnut Façade/Porch Project – Materials Proposed 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

  Ben Claypool, PE, PhD, Principal Engineer  

 DATE: October 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Hwy-1 Commercial Site Plan - 703 Brandilynn Blvd (Case # SP23-012) 
  
 

REQUEST: 
 

Site plan approval for construction of a new multi-tenant retail building  
 

PETITIONER: 
 

AMCPAC LLC; Alex Bower, Robinson Engineering Company, Engineer  
 

LOCATION: 
 

703 Brandilynn Blvd; Northwest of Brandilynn Blvd intersection of Winterberry 
Dr.   

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to construct 
a one-story, 8,468 square foot retail 
building at 703 Brandilynn Blvd.  
The applicant proposes two retail 
spaces and two restaurants.  The 
site plan illustrates the location of 
the building, parking for employees 
and customers, and a dumpster 
enclosure.  The proposed layout of 
the site sits on 1.537 acres with 
vehicular access to the private 
easement to the property to the 
north and an access on to 
Brandilynn Boulevard from the south.  Ross Dress for Less, Hobby Lobby, HomeGoods, 
and Dollar Tree are located to the north of the site.  Collins Community Credit Union 
and BioLife are located south of the site.  Walmart and associated parking lot is east of 
the site.     
 
 
 

21

Item 3.



 
 
BACKGROUND 
The property is part of the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan that was adopted by the City in 
2004. The City approved Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase II in 2012.  Lot 3 
was created in 2016 under Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South- Phase IV plat. The 
property is zoned Highway Commercial (HWY-1), which requires site plan review and a 
recommendation from Planning and Zoning Commission and approval from the City 
Council.  Pinnacle Prairie Owner’s Association has reviewed the plans for the site.   
 
In 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council reviewed and approved 
a site plan for a similar building, but it was never built. The applicant now requests a 
revised site plan and building design for the property. While the building and site layout 
is similar to the previously approved plan there are changes to the front façade of the 
building and the proposed building no longer includes a  drive-through.     
 
 ANALYSIS 
The HWY-1 District is intended to promote general service commercial uses that serve 
a broader market area (i.e. city-wide or regional customer base). The ordinance 
requires a detailed site plan review prior to approval in order to ensure that the 
development site satisfies several basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details such 
as parking, open green space, landscaping, signage, building design, and other similar 
factors help to ensure orderly development in the entire area.  
 

 
 

22

Item 3.



 
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development:  
 
1) Use: Any commercial or retail use intended to serve the traveling public or a 

regional customer base is listed as a permitted use in the HWY-1 District.  The 
retail and restaurant space proposed within the building satisfy this definition. Use 
is allowed. 
 

2) Setbacks: There is a platted building setback of 20 feet along Brandilynn 
Boulevard.  The building is 75 feet from Brandilynn; 103 feet from the western 
property line; 34 feet from the northern property line, and 75 feet from the southern 
property line.   

 
The side yard setback is 5 feet. The district also requires that a 20-foot landscaped 
setback be maintained along streets and principal accessways.  Drives, aisles, and 
parking areas may not encroach into these landscaped setbacks.  The private drive 
along the east property line is considered a principal accessway because it is the 
primary driveway for the entirety of this commercial area to the north and east.  
Therefore, the 20-foot landscaped setback applies along the eastern property 
boundary and along Brandilynn Boulevard to the south.  The applicant’s site plan 
conforms to these standards. Building setbacks are satisfied. The parking lot 
setbacks are also satisfied. 
 

3) Parking: The code requires restaurants to provide one parking space for every 100 
square feet of gross floor area, plus one parking space for every two employees 
with a minimum of five parking spaces.  The code requires retail stores over 2,000 
square feet in gross floor area to provide 4.5 parking stalls per 1,000 square feet of 
gross floor area.  The floor area of the building is 8,468 square feet and of that, 
4,820 square feet will be designated as the restaurant.  The applicant proposes 
using the exclusion of storage areas, closets, bathrooms, and other areas that are 
nonessential to the building up to 10%, which is found under Sec. 26-220(b)(1).   
 

Use Proposed 10% reduced sq Parking 
requirement 

Restaurant 4,820sf 4,338 44 
Restaurant 
employees 

16  8 

Retail 3,131sf 2,818 13 
Total   65 

 
The proposal requires 65 parking spaces and the applicant proposes 69 spaces. 
 

23

Item 3.



The parking meets the zoning standards with minimum stall dimensions of 9’ x 19’ 
with 24’ wide aisle. The amount and dimension of the parking stalls and drives 
are met. 

 
4) Open Green Space: The HWY-1 District requires that open green space/landscape 

area be provided at the rate of 10% of the development site excluding the required 
20-foot landscaped setback area. Below is a summary that details how this 
provision is met. 
 
 
 

New Development Site(excluding 20-foot landscape 
setback) 

55,071 SF  

Required Open/Green Space 5,507.1 SF 10% 
Provided Open/Green Space 15,437 SF 28% 

 
Landscaping is shown throughout the site, both around the building as well as 
within the parking lot, along the streets, and required setbacks. For clarity, the 
9,605 square feet is the provided green space in addition to the landscaped 
setback. 
The open green space exceeds the minimum requirement and is well 
distributed. 

 
5)  Landscaping: The HWY-1 District requires landscaping at the rate of 0.02 points per 

sq. ft. of total development site area which comes to 1,379 points required. Their 

24

Item 3.



plan achieves 1,895 points.  An additional 306 points are required for street tree 
planting and their plan achieves 480.  Four of the street trees are already planted.  

 
The Hwy-1 district and parking standards require internal landscaping requirements.   
Trees are required in the vehicular use area at the rate of one overstory tree per 15 
parking spaces.  This equates to a requirement of 5 overstory trees.  That is the 
amount proposed within the parking area to meet this requirement. 

 
In addition to the internal parking lot trees, there are trees required within the peripheral 
of the parking lot and along the street frontages.  The applicant proposes landscaping 
islands with at least five feet wide with shrubs, grasses, and additional trees being 
located around parking areas.  The landscaping screening is required for the entire 
parking lot which includes the internal circulation to be screened, which is provided. The 
landscaping plan also meets the requirements for the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan.  
Staff find that the proposal meets the landscaping requirements for parking and 
Highway Commercial Zoning District. 

 
 

6) Building Design: The HWY-1 zone requires a design review of various elements. 
The intent of the zone is to promote and facilitate comprehensively planned 
commercial developments located adjacent to major transportation corridors and 
interchanges. It is further the purpose of the zone to encourage high standards of 
building architecture and site planning. The elements in the code are noted below 
with a review of how each is addressed. Overall, staff finds that the proposed 
building design meets the zoning standards based on the following analysis.  

 
Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations of 
adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building; the 
relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 

The applicant submitted the elevations and two renderings of the building.  
The scale and proportion of the new building will be similar to other nearby 
establishments. It is one-story with variable wall heights where a flat roof with 
additional parapets ranging from 18-22 feet. The neighboring buildings to the 
north and south have similar dimensions.  Staff finds that the proposal is 
consistent with neighboring buildings and with the height allowances in the 
zoning district.  

 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch, and 
direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 
 

The adjacent buildings utilize flat roofs with a parapet in the front. The 
applicant proposes a flat roof with additional parapets to provide a variation to 
the roofline. Staff finds that the design is compatible with the surrounding 
buildings. 

 

25

Item 3.



Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front facade 
and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This pattern of 
solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building.  

 
The new building is oriented toward Brandilynn Blvd.  The applicant proposes 
a variety of fiber cement sidings in “espresso”, and “pecan” and pac-clad 
aluminum panels in “stone white.”  The applicant also proposes brick with a 
“vintage black velour” to provide a change in materials and colors.  There is a 
good balance of the materials and colors that provide a transition to the less 
transparent rear of the building. Overall, the patterns meet or exceed the 
City’s standards. 

 
Materials and texture: Materials and texture. The similarity or compatibility of existing 
materials and textures on the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the immediate area 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration 
shall be considered compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in the 
context of other buildings in the immediate area. 
 

The applicant proposes windows, fiber cement siding, and painted bricks for 
the new building’s exterior materials. All of the materials provide a sleeker 
modern feel that strikes a balance between color and texture. Staff finds that 
these material and texture choices are compatible with those of adjacent 
buildings. 

 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 
buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 

The applicant proposes the building features to be a very neutral color palate. 
The applicant proposes dark brown fiber cement, pac-clad aluminum panels 
in “stone white”, a pecan color fiber cement panels, and “black velour” bricks.  
Staff finds no issues with the choice of colors. 

 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the immediate area, 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not intended that 
the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those features should be 
regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale of details that would be 
appropriate for new buildings or alterations. 
 

Architectural features of the new building include the flat roof, with a slight 
variation where the parapets are located.  The applicant proposes window 
canopies along the south and east elevations and material changes for the 
north and west elevations. These style features and materials maintain an 
identity while being generally consistent with neighboring buildings.  

 
 

26

Item 3.



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
7) Trash Dumpster Site: The dumpster and enclosure are located on the west edge of 

the property. This enclosure will be made of rock face block in a dark gray color and 
metal to match the materials used on the principal structure. It will have three sets of 
doors to operate towards the east where a truck can approach it. The enclosure will 

NORTH ELEVATION 

27

Item 3.



measure 10 feet by 23 feet and will be 7 feet high. The dumpster facility location 
and enclosure are acceptable.  

 
 

8) Lighting: The HWY-1 District regulations do not have specific lighting design 
guidelines. However, all new site plans require a review of the lighting to consider 
potential nuisance issues and incompatibilities. The vehicular use area will utilize six, 
15-foot high fully downcast and shielded fixtures produced by Lithonia Lighting. The 
applicant will also propose four smaller fully downcast and shielded fixtures that will 
be attached to the building for pedestrian lighting.  The lighting plan shows that the 
proposed models will properly light critical areas of the site without producing glare 
or spillover light directing light on to other properties or right-of-way. Lighting is 
acceptable. 

 
9) Signage: Separate sign permits will be required for all signage prior to installation. 

However, the proposed signage plan for the site must be part of this review. The 
signage plan has been included as an attachment. 
 
Wall signs may only be on two wall surfaces and must be less than 20% of the wall 
area.  Proposed wall signs will need to be similar and proportional to the signs 
shown on the elevations for a cohesive sign plan at the time of sign permit.  For the 
new building, two wall signs are illustrated on the building on the west and the south 
elevation. These wall signs meet the quantity and are well within the size 
requirements. 
 
Freestanding signs are to be evaluated on a 
case-by-case basis. The intent in this zone is to 
limit the size, height, and the number of on-
premises signs for each permitted use with the 
objective of discouraging sign clutter and to 
encourage the highest aesthetic standards for 
the development site.  Freestanding signs are 
limited in height to 25 feet above the surface of 
the roadway and their aggregate sign area 
should not exceed 250 square feet.  The 
applicant proposes a 7.5 foot by 12.5 multi-tenant monument sign that will be 
constructed of similar materials as the proposed building. Signage is acceptable. 

28

Item 3.



 
10) Storm Water Management: The applicant proposes to connect to the Pinnacle 

Prairie regional storm water basin. This basin has been designed to manage any 
development on this lot. Accordingly, no additional detention is required. Prior to 
construction, a City SWPPP permit will still need to be obtained. Criterion is met, 
subject to final engineering review prior to issuance of a building permit.  

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the proposed site plan.  Water, electric, gas, 
and communications utility services are available in accordance with the service policies 
of CFU.  There is an existing 8” water service stubbed into the lot.  The site shows a 12” 
water service.  If a 12” is required, the existing 8” will need to be abandoned in 
accordance with the CFU service policies.  Natural gas is available along Brandilynn 
Blvd. 
 
The developer is responsible for the construction of a properly sized water system 
throughout the proposed site.  Included in the installation are valves, fire hydrants, and 
water service connections.  Cedar Falls Public Safety will need to review and approve 
the civil site plan for final hydrant locations.  Gas services are owned, installed, and 
maintained by CFU.  If the primary heat source for the new building is natural gas, CFU 
will install the gas service at no cost to the owner.  The general contractor is required to 
contact CFU for coordination of utility service locations.   
 
The landscaping plan shows trees and other landscaping features in the right of way 
and/or utility easements.  Removal and replacement of the trees or any other landscaping 
located within these areas that may be disturbed by utility maintenance, repair, or 
replacement is the responsibility of the property owner.  

 
Any other minor technical issues will be addressed at the time of a building plan review. 
 
A courtesy notice to surrounding property owners was mailed on September 29, 2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of SP23-012, a commercial site plan for property located at 
703 Brandilynn Boulevard in the Hwy-1 Commercial District, subject to:   

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance with all staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Introduction 
Discussion  

  
 

 

Attachments: Location Map 
  Complete Site Plan Set 
  Proposed Signage Plan & Building Elevations 

29

Item 3.



Pr airie Pkwy Trail

Viking Rd Trail

â

â

â

â

Wa
lm

art
 Dr

W in terber ryDr

Brandilynn Blvd

E Viking Rd

Prairie Pkwy

M-2-PA-1

HWY-1

MU

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission 
October 11, 2023

Retail on Brandilynn Blvd

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

30

Item 3.



Robinson Engineering Company
Consulting Engineers

819 Second Street NE
Independence, Iowa 50644

319-334-7211

DEVELOPER

CIVIL ENGINEER

1-800-292-8989
www.iowaonecall.com

 STATE OF IOWA 

C0.1
2023_0918
SUBMITTAL2

 LOCATION MAP 

LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

703 BRANDILYNN BOULEVARD

NEW COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT

PN: 4305-21

ARCHITECT

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

31

Item 3.



BRANDILYNN BOULEVARD

EXISTING INLET, 9'x4'
RIM = 954.5
FL OUT = 949.65

EXISTING INLET, 9'x5'
RIM = 954.06
FL OUT = 947.51

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 955.80
FL OUT = 944.80

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 958.09
FL OUT = 946.39

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 960.88

FL OUT = 948.58

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

 PROJECT CONTROL 

C0.2

SI
T
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 P

LA
N

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

½ 

RETAIL FLOOR AREA REDUCTION: 3,131 SF * .9 = 2,818 SF
RESTAURANT FLOOR AREA REDUCTION: 4,820 SF * .9 = 4,338 SF
RESTAURANT EMPLOYEES, MAX SHIFT PROJECTED: 8 EMPLOYEES

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LOT 3
RETAIL CENTER

32

Item 3.



R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C0.3

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
T
ES

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

GENERAL NOTES

TRAFFIC CONTROL APPLICABLE SUDAS SECTIONS:

” 

DIVISION 2: Earthwork

DIVISION 3: Trench Excavation and Backfill

DIVISION 4: Sewers and Drains

DIVISION 5: Water Mains and Appurtenances

DIVISION 6: Structures for Sanitary and Storm Sewers

DIVISION 7: Streets and Related Work

DIVISION 8: Traffic Control

DIVISION 9: Site Work and Landscaping

Division 11: Miscellaneous

APPLICABLE SUDAS DETAILS:

DIVISION 2: Earthwork

DIVISION 3: Trench Excavation and Backfill

DIVISION 4: Sewers and Drains

DIVISION 5: Water Mains and Appurtenances

DIVISION 7: Streets and Related Work

DIVISION 8: Traffic Control

DIVISION 9: Site Work and Landscaping

33

Item 3.



BRANDILYNN BOULEVARD

EXISTING INLET, 9'x4'
RIM = 954.5
FL OUT = 949.65

EXISTING INLET, 9'x5'
RIM = 954.06
FL OUT = 947.51

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 955.80
FL OUT = 944.80

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 958.09
FL OUT = 946.39

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 960.88

FL OUT = 948.58

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C1.1

U
T
IL

IT
Y
 P

LA
N

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

NOTES:

SW-510 RETROFIT DETAIL

SW-508 RETROFIT DETAIL

34

Item 3.



957.79 TC

95
8.9

6 T
S

959.46 SW 95
8.7

6 T
S

95
7.2

9 T
S

95
9.1

7 S
W

95
8.9

6 S
W

95
8.9

6 T
S

959.46 SW 95
8.7

6 T
S

95
8.9

6 T
S

959.46 SW 95
8.7

6 T
S

95
7.1

7 T
S

95
5.9

6 T
S

95
6.1

5 T
C955.14 TC

95
4.6

4 T
S

95
8.4

2 T
S

95
8.5

4 T
S

95
8.6

8 T
S

95
8.7

0 T
S

958.72 TS958.76 TS

958.65 TS

958.96 TS

95
7.3

5 T
S

95
7.8

3 T
S

95
7.8

5 T
S

95
7.9

5 T
S

95
8.1

1 T
S

95
8.2

4 T
S

95
8.2

9 T
S

958.41 TC958.46 TC

958.43 TC

95
8.5

6 T
C

95
7.8

5 T
C

95
8.3

3 T
C

95
8.3

5 T
C

95
8.4

5 T
C

95
8.6

1 T
C

95
8.8

8 T
C

95
9.0

0 T
C

95
8.9

0 T
C

95
8.8

0 T
C

95
8.6

3 T
C

95
8.5

0 T
C

95
8.2

9 T
C

955.53 TS

956.94 TS

958.03 TS

95
8.5

3 T
C

95
7.4

4 T
C956.03 TC

958.38 TS

95
8.2

3 T
S

95
6.6

9 T
S

955.23 TS

955.79 TC955.49 TC

954.34 TS

95
8.6

9 S
W

95
8.7

2 S
W

95
7.2

6 S
W95

7.1
9 S

W

95
8.2

4 S
W

95
8.2

9 S
W

95
7.1

1 S
W

95
7.1

9 S
W

95
8.3

8 T
S

95
8.4

0 T
S

95
8.5

0 T
S

95
8.3

0 T
S

95
8.1

3 T
S

95
8.0

0 T
S

95
7.7

9 T
S

95
6.5

8 T
C

95
6.6

2 T
S 957.57 TS

95
8.0

7 S
W

95
7.0

6 S
W

2.06%4.30%

1.
04

%
0.

64
%

2.
38

%

2.
00

%

1.00%

1.00%

0.
80

%
0.

80
%

2.
46

%

6.08%

3.59%

3.25%

1.92%

5.03% 1.50%

1.06%

1.00% 2.00%
0.

17
%

2.73%1.00%

1.00%
3.31% 3.52%

0.
00

%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
13

%

0.
00

%

0.
80

%

2.
51

%

1.
30

%
2.

00
%

4.56%

3.22%
3.

17
%

3.13%

1.
39

%

95
7.2

5 S
W

959.50 SW

959.50 SW

95
5.4

0 S
W

95
5.5

3 S
W

95
5.5

3 S
W

95
5.4

7 S
W

95
5.2

1 S
W

95
5.1

8 S
W

95
5.4

7 S
W

95
5.4

0 S
W

95
5.5

3 S
W

95
5.5

3 S
W

95
5.4

7 S
W

95
5.2

1 S
W

95
5.1

8 S
W

95
5.4

7 S
W

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C2.1

PA
V

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

 E
A

ST

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

BR
A

N
D

ILY
N

N
 BO

U
LEV

A
R
D

PAVEMENT NOTES:

PAVEMENT HATCHING LEGEND

ADA CODE SUMMARY:

CROSSWALK RAMP DETAIL

35

Item 3.

https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf


95
8.4

6 T
S

95
8.1

2 T
S

957.48 TS

958.16 TS

958.66 TS

959.28 TS

957.78 TS

958.46 TS

958.96 TS

959.58 TS

95
8.6

6 T
S

95
8.6

6 T
S

95
6.8

0 T
S

95
6.9

9 T
S

95
7.2

2 T
S

959.16 SW

959.16 SW 95
8.6

6 T
S

95
6.1

8 T
S

955.74 TS

95
8.5

6 T
S

95
8.6

2 T
S

95
8.5

3 T
S

96
0.3

7 T
S

95
8.7

8 T
S

95
9.1

4 T
S

95
9.7

4 T
S

96
0.2

6 T
S

96
0.6

1 T
S

96
0.7

3 T
S

95
8.7

0 T
S

95
8.2

9 T
S

958.44 TS95
8.5

7 T
S

958.75 TS

96
0.5

2 S
W

960.64 SW

960.67 SW

96
0.7

1 S
W

960.58 SW

960.87 TC

961.23 TC

960.08 TC

959.46 TC

958.96 TC

958.28 TC

957.59 TC

95
7.0

8 T
C95

6.6
2 T

C

95
6.1

2 T
S

95
6.5

8 T
S

958.17 TS

96
1.1

1 T
C

96
0.7

6 T
C

96
0.2

4 T
C

95
9.7

9 T
C

959.20 TC

958.79 TC

958.67 TC

957.79 TC

956.68 TC956.24 TC

959.50 SW

959.50 SW

959.50 SW

95
8.9

6 T
S

95
8.9

6 T
S

959.46 SW

959.46 SW

95
8.7

6 T
S

95
8.7

6 T
S

958.13 TS

957.61 TS

95
7.2

9 T
S

958.11 TC

95
8.9

6 T
S

958.96 SW 95
8.7

6 T
S

95
8.9

6 T
S

959.46 SW 95
8.7

6 T
S 958.28 TS

957.89 TS

958.39 TC

95
8.5

0 T
C

95
8.2

9 T
C

95
8.0

0 T
S

95
7.7

9 T
S

95
6.9

8 T
S

95
7.6

2 T
S

958.12 SW

959.94 TC959.84 TC

1.00%
3.31% 3.52%

1.00% 2.63%

1.00% 2.40%

1.00% 2.00% 2.03%

2.71%

0.59% 0.49%

0.79%

0.
82

%
0.

80
%

0.
00

%

0.
31

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

1.
00

%

0.
67

%
0.

00
%

1.50%

3.
97

%
2.

89
%

1.
02

%

4.00%6.34%

5.87%

1.84%

3.35% 1.00%
1.

02
%

3.
20

%

3.06% 0.00%

2.
70

%
2.

13
%

1.
00

%

0.
40

%

0.
47

%

2.
10

%

4.00% 4.00% 0.77% 2.02%

2.02%

0.80%3.92%

2.59%2.50%2.00%2.00%

1.
56

%

1.
56

%

1.
56

%

1.
45

%
2.50%2.50%2.00%2.32%

1.
00

%0.72%

0.31%

0.
60

%

1.
22

%

0.
53

%
0.

43
%

95
6.8

1 T
S957.31 TC

4.
02

%

959.50 SW

957.84 SW

96
0.4

4 S
W

960.56 SW

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C2.2

PA
V

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

 W
ES

T

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

B
R
A

N
D

IL
Y
N

N
 B

O
U

LE
V

A
R
D

PAVEMENT NOTES:

PAVEMENT HATCHING LEGEND

ADA CODE SUMMARY:

36

Item 3.

https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7010_102.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://iowadot.gov/design/SRP/IndividualStandards/pm111.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_101.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf
https://intrans.iastate.edu/app/uploads/sites/15/2020/02/7030_202.pdf


BRANDILYNN BOULEVARD

EXISTING INLET, 9'x4'
RIM = 954.5
FL OUT = 949.65

EXISTING INLET, 9'x5'
RIM = 954.06
FL OUT = 947.51

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 955.80
FL OUT = 944.80

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 958.09
FL OUT = 946.39

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 960.88

FL OUT = 948.58

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C3.1

SW
PP

P 
- 

IN
IT

IA
L

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

LEGEND

NOTES:

KEY

SEQUENCE OF ACTIVITIES
INITIAL

PREPARATION OF SITE FOR MOBILIZATION

AND COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

37

Item 3.



BRANDILYNN BOULEVARD

EXISTING INLET, 9'x4'
RIM = 954.5
FL OUT = 949.65

EXISTING INLET, 9'x5'
RIM = 954.06
FL OUT = 947.51

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 955.80
FL OUT = 944.80

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 958.09
FL OUT = 946.39

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 960.88

FL OUT = 948.58

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C3.2

SW
PP

P 
- 

D
U

R
IN

G
C

O
N

ST
R
U

C
T
IO

N

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

SEQUENCE OF ACTIVITIES
CONSTRUCTION

CONTINUED MAINTENANCE, IMPLEMENTATION,

AND EVOLUTION OF SWPPP

1. MAINTENANCE
1.A. SWPPP DOCUMENTS
1.B. PERIMETER CONTROLS
1.C. TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE
1.D. STOCK PILES

2. SITE GRADING
2.A. INSTALL DETENTION BASIN ON SOUTH END TO OPERATE

AS SEDIMENT BASIN DURING CONSTRUCTION.
2.B. PLACE EROSION MULCHING WHEN AREAS ARE NOT

BEING WORKED OR ONCE GRADE IS ESTABLISHED
2.C. PLACE PAVEMENT SUBBASE ONCE SUBGRADE

PREPARED
2.D. SWEEP STREETS WHEN EROSION IS TRACKED

3. UTILITIES
3.A. PLACE EROSION MULCHING THROUGH DISTURBED

AREAS
3.B. PLACE INLET PROTECTION DEVICES FOR NEWLY

INSTALLED INTAKES
3.C. PLACE SILT FENCE TO PROTECT CULVERTS
3.D. SWEEP STREETS WHEN EROSION IS TRACKED

4. BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
4.A. MAINTAIN ONSITE CONTROLS

5. SITE PAVING
5.A. INSTALL CONCRETE WASHOUT
5.B. REMOVE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE ONCE

REQUIRED TO PREPARE SUBBASE AND PLACE
PAVEMENT

LEGEND

NOTES:

KEY

38

Item 3.



BRANDILYNN BOULEVARD

EXISTING INLET, 9'x4'
RIM = 954.5
FL OUT = 949.65

EXISTING INLET, 9'x5'
RIM = 954.06
FL OUT = 947.51

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 955.80
FL OUT = 944.80

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 958.09
FL OUT = 946.39

EXISTING INLET, 5'x5'
RIM = 960.88

FL OUT = 948.58

R
ob

in
so

n 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
C

on
su

lti
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs

8
1

9
 S

ec
o
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
N

E
In

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, 

Io
w

a 
5

0
6

4
4

3
1

9
-3

3
4

-7
2

1
1

C3.3

SW
PP

P 
- 

FI
N

A
L 

ST
A

B
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N

SUBMITTAL2

T
 &

 L
 I
N

V
ES

T
M

EN
T
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X
 3

9
0
, 
5
2
0
 M

A
IN

 S
T
R
EE

T
H

U
D

SO
N

, 
IO

W
A

 5
0
6
4
3

LO
T
 3

 R
ET

A
IL

 C
EN

T
ER

PN
: 
4
3
0
5
-2

1

2023_0918

SEQUENCE OF ACTIVITIES
FINAL STABILIZATION

1. REMOVAL OF SILT BASIN
1.A. DREDGE BASINS TO REMOVE ACCUMULATING SILT.
1.B. REMOVE TEMPORARY SILT DEVICE FROM OUTLET

STRUCTURE OF BASIN.
2. SPREAD TOP SOIL
3. SEEDING

3.A. REMOVE EROSION FROM DEVICES TO FINISHED
GRADE AND PREP SEEDING AREAS

3.B. PLACE SEEDING, MULCHING, AND FERTILIZER
3.C. WATER AS NECESSARY

4. SEEDING ESTABLISHED
4.A. REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY CONTROLS.
4.B. BEGIN DETENTION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE.

LEGEND

NOTES:

KEY

39

Item 3.



Existing Oak
5" DBH = 100 points

Existing Maple
6" DBH = 100 points

Existing Locust
4" DBH = 100 points

Existing Locust
5" DBH = 100 points

RO

Light
Pole

Light
Pole

Light
Pole

Light
Pole

Existing Maple
3" Cal = 90 points

AM

HAC

HAC

HLS
OSW

OSW

OSW

KC

EVF

NLD (3)

NLD (3)HLL (8)

GKF (3)

GKF (39)

GKF (3)

GKF (3)

ALM (5)

Overstory Tree 2.5" B&B

Evergreen Shrub

Deciduous Shrub

Perennial  #1

DS (7)

GKF (7)

DS (3)

GKF (3)

GKF (3)
GKF (3)

GKF (3)

VBM (3)

VBM (3)

JSG (3)ASB (6)

ASB (5)

GKF (16)

GKF (3)

GKF (3)

GDS (18)

JSG (5)

JSG (5)

HQF (5)

HQF (5)

HQF (3)

HQF (3)

JSG (10)

DS (6)

SR (10)

AM

DS (3)

GKF (3)

HLS
HLS

EVF

40

Item 3.



LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

41

Item 3.



LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

42

Item 3.



21
1

4

56

8

SOUTH ELEVATION

10 10

1
1

78 78 8 78 8

3 3

7

LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

1

2

3

4

5

6

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CAP - FIRESTONE MATTE BLACK

ACM PANEL FASCIA - WHITE

FACE BRICK - VINTAGE BLACK VELOUR

PAC-CLAD ALUM. PANELS - STONE WHITE

NICHIHA ROUGHSAWN PANELS - ESPRESSO

NICHIHA RIFTSAWN PANELS - PECAN

7

8

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - BLACK

ALUM. STOREFRONT FRAMING - BLACK

9 INSUL. GALV. H.M. DOOR - MATCH PAC-CLAD STONE WHITE

10

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW - BLACK11

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CANOPY - BLACK

10

FUTURE WALL SIGNAGE TO NOT EXCEED
20% OF THE ATTACHED SURFACE AREA.

TOTAL SOUTH WALL AREA = 2,717 SF
20% OF SOUTH WALL AREA = 543 SF

CURRENT SIGNAGE AS SHOWN = 141 SF 
FINAL SIGNAGE TO BE REVIEWED W/ EACH BUILDOUT

10'-6"

2'-0" 12'-6"
2'-4"

12'-6"
2'-4"

12'-6"

2'-4"

3'-0"

10
'-0

"

10

MAIN FLOOR
0' - 0"

HIGH PARAPET
22' - 0"

LOW  PARAPET
18' - 6"

MID PARAPET
20' - 0"

43

Item 3.



MAIN FLOOR
0' - 0"

LOW  PARAPET
18' - 6"

MID PARAPET
20' - 0"

LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

NORTH ELEVATION

99

3

3

3

3

33 6

2
1

4 4

99 9
1

1

1
1

6

1

1

1

2

3

4

5

6

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CAP - FIRESTONE MATTE BLACK

ACM PANEL FASCIA - WHITE

FACE BRICK - VINTAGE BLACK VELOUR

PAC-CLAD ALUM. PANELS - STONE WHITE

NICHIHA ROUGHSAWN PANELS - ESPRESSO

NICHIHA RIFTSAWN PANELS - PECAN

7

8

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - BLACK

ALUM. STOREFRONT FRAMING - BLACK

9 INSUL. GALV. H.M. DOOR - MATCH PAC-CLAD STONE WHITE

10

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW - BLACK11

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CANOPY - BLACK

6

44

Item 3.



MAIN FLOOR
0' - 0"

HIGH PARAPET
22' - 0"

LOW  PARAPET
18' - 6"

T 

R

NUMENT 
VIDED OF 

D 250 SF

4

1
2
1

5

7

10

3

EAST ELEVATION

LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

1

2

3

4

5

6

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CAP - FIRESTONE MATTE BLACK

ACM PANEL FASCIA - WHITE

FACE BRICK - VINTAGE BLACK VELOUR

PAC-CLAD ALUM. PANELS - STONE WHITE

NICHIHA ROUGHSAWN PANELS - ESPRESSO

NICHIHA RIFTSAWN PANELS - PECAN

7

8

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - BLACK

ALUM. STOREFRONT FRAMING - BLACK

9 INSUL. GALV. H.M. DOOR - MATCH PAC-CLAD STONE WHITE

10

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW - BLACK11

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CANOPY - BLACK

45

Item 3.



MAIN FLOOR
0' - 0"

HIGH PARAPET
22' - 0"

LOW  PARAPET
18' - 6"

MID PARAPET
20' - 0"

4

1

8

6

33

3

8

1
1

1

LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

1

2

3

4

5

6

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CAP - FIRESTONE MATTE BLACK

ACM PANEL FASCIA - WHITE

FACE BRICK - VINTAGE BLACK VELOUR

PAC-CLAD ALUM. PANELS - STONE WHITE

NICHIHA ROUGHSAWN PANELS - ESPRESSO

NICHIHA RIFTSAWN PANELS - PECAN

7

8

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - BLACK

ALUM. STOREFRONT FRAMING - BLACK

9 INSUL. GALV. H.M. DOOR - MATCH PAC-CLAD STONE WHITE

10

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW - BLACK11

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CANOPY - BLACK

FUTURE WALL SIGNAGE TO NOT EXCEED
20% OF THE ATTACHED SURFACE AREA.

TOTAL SOUTH WALL AREA = 1,212 SF
20% OF SOUTH WALL AREA = 242 SF

CURRENT SIGNAGE AS SHOWN = 28 SF
FINAL SIGNAGE TO BE REVIEWED W/ EACH BUILDOUT

6'-0"

6'
-0

"

WEST ELEVATION

46

Item 3.



7'
 - 

4"
 T

.O
. M

AS
O

N
R

Y

6'
 - 

8"
 T

O
P 

O
F 

G
AT

E

11' - 1"11' - 2"11' - 1"
CL CL CL CL

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CAP 
OVER MASONRY WALL

HEAVY DUTY GATE 
HINGE, TYP.

GALV. CORRUGATED 
MTL. GATE PANEL, SEE 
DETAIL C/A5.1 (PAINT)

6" ⌀ STEEL POST 
W/ CONC. CORE

CONC. FOUNDATION 
& FOOTING, SEE 
FOUNDATION PLAN

6"⌀ STEEL POST 
EMBEDDED IN 24"⌀
CONC. SONO-TUBE

6"⌀ STEEL POST 
EMBEDDED IN 24"⌀
CONC. SONO-TUBE

GATE PIN, 
TYP.

CONC. FOUNDATION & 
FOOTING, SEE 

FOUNDATION PLAN

8" CMU

PREFIN. SHT. 
MTL. CAP

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

ENCLOSURE FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

ENCLOSURE SIDE ELEVATION

7'
 - 

4"
 T

.O
. M

AS
O

N
R

Y

6'
 - 

8"
 T

O
P 

O
F 

G
AT

E

11' - 1"11' - 2"11' - 1"
CL CL CL CL

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. CAP 
OVER MASONRY WALL

HEAVY DUTY GATE 
HINGE, TYP.

GALV. CORRUGATED 
MTL. GATE PANEL, SEE 
DETAIL C/A5.1 (PAINT)

6" ⌀ STEEL POST 
W/ CONC. CORE

CONC. FOUNDATION 
& FOOTING, SEE 
FOUNDATION PLAN

6"⌀ STEEL POST 
EMBEDDED IN 24"⌀
CONC. SONO-TUBE

6"⌀ STEEL POST 
EMBEDDED IN 24"⌀
CONC. SONO-TUBE

GATE PIN, 
TYP.

CONC. FOUNDATION & 
FOOTING, SEE 

FOUNDATION PLAN

8" CMU

PREFIN. SHT. 
MTL. CAP

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

ENCLOSURE FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

ENCLOSURE SIDE ELEVATION

LOT 3 RETAIL CENTER
Brandilynn Blvd. | Cedar Falls, IA

"0 - '8"0 - '5

2'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
8"

4'
 - 

8"
2'

 - 
0"

12' - 8"4"

NICHIHA RIFTSAWN 
PANELS PECAN

PREFIN. SHT. MTL. 
CAP, MATTE BLACK 

FACE BRICK, VINTAGE 
BLACK VELOUR, ON POURED 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION

7'
 - 

8"

HALO LIT ALUM. 
CHANNEL LETTERS, 

EXACT LETTERING TO 
BE DETERMINED

INTERNALLY LIT 
BOX SIGN, BY 
SIGN SUPPLIER

132 SF OF MONUMENT 
SIGNAGE PROVIDED OF 
MAX ALLOWED 250 SF

6'
 - 

8"

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

MONUMENT SIGN TYP. ELEVATION

NTEGRAL COLOR 
8" ROCK-FACE 
BLOCK, SLATE

PREFIN. SHT. 
MTL. CAP, 

MATTE BLACK

10' - 0"

11' - 2"11' - 2"
CL

PREFIN. SHT. 
MTL. CAP, 
MATTE BLACK

GALV. CORRUGATED MTL. 
GATE PANEL, (SLATE 
GRAY BY FIRESTONE)

7
' 
- 

4
" 

T
.O

. 
M

A
S

O
N

R
Y

CL CL

T
.O

. 
G

A
T

E

6
' 
- 

8
"

23' - 0"

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

ENCLOSURE SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

ENCLOSURE FRONT ELEVATION

47

Item 3.


	Top
	Item 1.	Approval of Minutes
	09-13-2023 P and Z Minutes

	Item 2.	College Hill Design Review - 2121 Walnut
	1_PZ Staff report for new porch
	2. Elevations
	3. Materials
	4. Letter of Intent

	Item 3.	3.	Hwy-1 Commercial Site Plan– 703 Brandilynn Blvd. (SP23-012)
	1_staff report to PZf
	2.  ZoningLocationMap
	3 2023_0918 - BrandilynnRetail Civil-Submittal2
	4 08.25.2023 Landscape Plan Brandilynn Lot3
	5 Lot 3 Retail Center Exterior Materials 8.22.23

	Bottom

